
 
Washington Central Unified Union School District 

 
WCUUSD exists to nurture and inspire in all students the passion, creativity and power to contribute to 

their local and global communities. 
 
 

1130 Gallison Hill Road 
Montpelier, VT  05602   
Phone (802) 229-0553          
Fax (802) 229-2761 

    

WCUUSD Finance Committee 
Meeting Agenda 

4.12.22 8:30-9:30 AM  
Central Office, 1130 Gallison Hill Rd. Montpelier 

Via Video Conference  

 
 

1. Call To Order 
 

2. Approve Minutes of 3.15.22 – pg. 2 
 

3. Informational Reports  
3.1. Monthly Reflection – pg. 5 
3.2. FY 22 Fund Balance Projection Report – pg.7  

 

4. Discussion/Action 
4.1. Annual Fiscal Management Questionnaire – pg. 8 
4.2. Federal and State Grant Authorization – pg. 10 
4.3. Capital Improvement Plan and Five-Year Capital Budget – pg. 11 

 

5. Next Meeting Date and Future Agenda Items 
5.1. Next Regular Meeting May 10, 2022 
5.2. Capital Improvement Plan May  
5.3. Budget Planning/Retreat  

 

6. Adjourn 

Berlin East Montpelier Calais 

Middlesex Worcester 

U- 32 

Virtual Meeting Information 
https://tinyurl.com/yckw4h6h 

Meeting ID: 860 2619 4533 
Password: 023985 

Dial by Your Location: 1-929-205-6099 
 

1

https://tinyurl.com/yckw4h6h


Washington Central Unified Union School District 

WCUUSD exists to nurture and inspire in all students the passion, creativity and power to contribute to their 
local and global communities. 

1130 Gallison Hill Road 
Montpelier, VT  05602  Jennifer Miller-Arsenault  
Phone (802) 229-0553 Interim Superintendent 
Fax (802) 229-2761        

WCUUSD Finance Committee 
 Meeting Minutes Unapproved 

3.22.22 8:30-9:30 a.m.  
Central Office, 1130 Gallison Hill Rd., Montpelier 

Via Video Conference 

     Present: Flor Diaz Smith, Susanne Gann, Ursula Stanley, Chris O’Brien, Steven Dellinger-
Pate, Natasha Eckart-Baning, Mark Kline  

1. Call to Order: Flor Diaz Smith called the meeting to order at 8:34 a.m.

2. Approve Minutes of 2.22.22: Kari Bradley motioned to approve the minutes. Ursula seconded
the motion. The motion passed unanimously.

3. Informational Reports
3.1.Monthly Reflection: Susanne advised that planning and preparation to identify positions that

need advertising for next school year has begun.  Carla has already begun advertising positions. 
She advised that work on the general fund financial update, fund balance is complete, and some 
new processes have been instituted with building administrators to track budgets. The pre-audit 
is scheduled for May 17th- 20th with RHR Smith and the actual audit is scheduled for August 
8th-12th. These dates are on track with last year and we are hopeful it will allow for a report by 
December. Chris O’Brien and Susanne are on track to bring a proposed district multi-year 
Capital Improvement Plan to the board next month. Susanne advised she has been working on 
submission of the AOE Excess Spending Applications for capital projects. Applications are 
complete for the U-32 roof, AHU updates and softball dugouts. The district has received 
approval for the U-32 roof and AHU projects. Bid waivers were necessary and have received 
approval. She provided the committee an updated bid schedule.  

3.2.FY 22 Financial Update and Fund Balance Report: Susanne advised this format is similar to 
the report that Lori developed. Susanne gave an overview of the report, which projects higher 
revenues of $4459; higher expenses of $36,732. Projected general fund balance beyond the 2% 
target is $1,609,220.  

4. Discussion/Action
4.1. Debrief FY 23 Budget Process: Kari advised he felt it went very well and the outcome of the

process seemed very organized this year. Ursula felt that it went very smooth and she advised 
she liked that the leadership team was presenting to the board. Flor agreed and enjoyed the 
collaboration. Kari advised the staff did a great job in responding to the parameters. He 
suggested adding the parameters recommended by the finance committee sometime in October. 
It should be considered that the communication plan be added in January for future years. Kari 
proposed that a conversation about budget parameters for next year happen now. He suggested 
one parameter include an initiative that will achieve significant improvement in literacy and/or 
math proficiency for students on IEP and/or FRL. 

2



The board wants the leadership team to identify an appropriate scope given current 
circumstances and consider what resources will be needed for achievement. Jen Miller-
Arsenault advised she appreciated the budget parameters, as they were very helpful. Steven 
advised he would love year round discussions in regards to the budget. Chris O’Brien advised 
he felt it went well and agreed with others that talking earlier would be helpful. Flor proposed a 
retreat with the leadership team.  

4.2. U-32 Softball Dugout Project Bid Award: Chris O’Brien advised we invited five vendors to 
bid on this project and we received two. The two bids received were from E.F. Wall & 
Associates and the other from Lajeunnesse Construction, Inc. The total amount budgeted for 
this project including contingency is $33,000. The low base bid amount is $41,000 provided by 
Lajeunnesse Construction including an additional 10% contingency for change orders; the total 
construction portion of the project would be $45,100, which is over the Board approved budget. 
Budgets for other projects have come in sufficiently under budget to cover this overage. Since 
only two bids were received, a waiver request will need to be submitted to the AOE prior to 
awarding the contract. Kari motioned to recommend awarding the U-32 Softball Dugout 
Construction contract to Lajeunnesse Construction in an amount not to exceed $45,100. 
Ursula seconded. The motion passed unanimously.  

4.3. U-32 Storm water Project Bid Award: We invited five vendors to bid on the project. We 
received five bids for this project. The low base bid amount is $196,400 provided by Isaac’s 
Excavating and Construction, LLC. The owner Isaac Jensen appears to have experience 
working for others, this is his first year going out on his own and he is in the process of 
purchasing equipment, hiring staff, and lining up insurance which indicates he is currently not a 
qualified contractor for this project. The next lowest bid amount is $249,660 provided by 
Hebert Excavation. An additional 10% contingency for change orders would bring the project 
total to $274,626, which is within the original budget for this project. During the planning 
phase of this project it was determined that excavation for the storm water project would cause 
damage to the field hockey field and require extensive repair. This field was already planned 
for a complete refurbishment in the summer of 2023, along with the baseball and softball 
fields. In order to avoid the need to excavate and redress the field hockey field twice, the 
refurbishment would ideally be completed this summer coincident with the new gravel 
wetland. Civil Engineering Associates Inc. has provided an estimated cost of $104,327 to 
complete this work with a total of $114,077 for engineering costs. It is recommended to award 
the bid to Hebert Construction in an amount not to exceed $274,626 for the U-32 Storm Water 
Project. It is also recommended that the board authorize the use of $92,395 of the Storm Water 
project budget, plus additional capital reserve funds, not to exceed $21,682 to proceed with the 
refurbishment of the U-32 Field hockey field. Kari Bradley moved to accept the 
recommendation. Ursula Stanley seconded. The motion passed.  

4.4. U-32 Parking Lot and Sidewalk Feasibility Study: The Board reviewed the Capital 
Improvement Project Plan for FY 23 and FY 24 at the November 17, 2021 meeting. The board 
approved the budget for the FY 23 projects at that time. The preliminary list for projects to be 
completed in FY 24 included repaving the U-32 parking lot. Given the size of the project, the 
planning work to determine full scope of the project has begun. To improve safety, the U-32 
administration requested a review of the driveway circulation and parking lot layout before 
repaving happens. It is necessary to engage a professional engineer to complete a feasibility 
study to develop the full scope and review the circulation and parking lot layout for this 
project. Engineering Ventures, PC has proposed an agreement of $7,200 to complete the study. 
It is recommended that the board authorize the use of capital reserve funds, not to exceed 
$7,200 to proceed with the feasibility study for the U-32 driveway circulation and parking lot 
layout. Ursula motioned to accept the recommendation. Natasha seconded. 

3



 
 
 
 
 
 Chris proposed thinking about putting electric vehicle chargers on site. Steven advised there 
are at least four employees that are currently driving electric vehicles. The motion passed. 

 
5. Next Meeting Date and Future Agenda Items  

5.1. Next Regular Meeting April 12, 2022 
5.2. FY 23 Capital Improvement Project Bid Awards 
5.3. Capital Improvement Plan (April and May) 
5.4. Future Uses of Fund Balance 
5.5. Planning for Budgeting/Budget Calendar/Retreat  

 
6. Adjourn: The meeting  adjourned at 9:24 a.m.  
 

 

4



Washington Central Unified Union School District 
 

WCUUSD exists to nurture and inspire in all students the passion, creativity and power to contribute to 
their local and global communities. 

 
 

1130 Gallison Hill Road 
Montpelier, VT  05602  Jennifer Miller-Arsenault 
Phone (802) 229-0553 Interim Superintendent           
Fax (802) 229-2761          

          

 

TO:   WCUUSD Finance Committee & School Board 
FROM:  Susanne D. Gann, WCUUSD Business Administrator 
RE:     Monthly Reflections 
DATE:   April 7, 2022 
 

 
Carla Messier, HR Coordinator completed a thorough audit of employee placement on the 
various pay grids and updated employee contracts in the HR system, making additions, 
corrections and deletions as appropriate.  Michelle Ksepka, Operations Manager and 
Virginia Breer, Senior Payroll Accountant reviewed the contract changes for FY 2022-23.  
Professional development (PD) completion review for anticipated horizontal movement for 
FY 2022-23 is in progress.  Final documents supporting horizontal movement must be 
provided to the Superintendent no later than October 1, 2022.  The volume of staff 
transitions and resignations continues to be high, which creates significant efforts to 
confirm everyone’s pay.   

NEMRC, our software system, experienced a malfunction during the contract rollover 
process this year, which meant that the contact update process was more manual than 
usual.  The software provider has been unable to identify and correct the issue.  This 
highlights a lack of functionality for HR processes in NEMRC, and the need for the District 
to research possible replacement software for the HR and Payroll functions. 

All contracts have been updated in NEMRC for the 2022-23 year, only the Teacher 
contracts have been printed, signed and distributed.  Melissa has provided assistance in the 
contract distribution process, organizing, printing, stuffing envelopes and verifying / 
checking the list of contracts sent, and she provides support in many other ways.  Staff will 
debrief the contract update together to process and document what worked and what 
could be improved upon for next year.  Thank you to Carla, Michelle and Virginia for their 
work on this project. 

         

The Special Education Expenditure Report for the period ending February 28 was due to 
the AOE on March 15th.  The total expenditures for the first eight months of the year are 
reported to the AOE, with detailed worksheets for extraordinary cost (over $60,000) and 

5



Monthly Reflections 

state-placed students.  The February report must also include an estimate of projected 
year-end expenses for state-placed students.  Renee Bates tracks special education 
expenses by students in both of these categories.  It was necessary for Renee to re-create 
her tracking files this past year, which created a significant amount of work in preparation 
for this report.  This report is what our second AOE special education reimbursement 
payment for the fiscal year is based upon.  Thank you, Renee for all that you do to keep 
Special Education Reports on track. 

         

Matt has begun uploading documents to the auditor’s share file to prepare for their initial 
audit work May 17 – May 20, 2022. 

The monthly grant reimbursement report is due to the AOE on the 15th.  Matt Kittredge 
submits these reports to the AOE, which results in receiving reimbursement for YTD 
expenditures on grants.  Matt keeps close track of grant expenditures each month to ensure 
the accurate filing of this report.  

The CFP grant amendment is due 4/15/22.  In order to ensure all expenses are captured, 
Matt must reconcile the grant budget in the state’s grant management software to our 
financial software before the amendment is completed.  

         

At the end of each quarter the unemployment tax wage report is due to the Department of 
Labor and the Health Care Employer Assessment is due to the Tax Department.  The 
Federal 941 report and the State of Vermont’s Payroll Quarterly Reports are all due.  
Quarterly reports are also due to Municipal and Teacher’s Retirement (VMERS and VSTRS) 
and EPSDT.  Virginia completes all of these reports by the due dates. 

Virginia keeps a close eye on any rate and vendor changes that might affect employee 
benefits, updating benefit rate sheets for new hires.  She has begun planning for next year’s 
payroll by reviewing the FY 2022-23 calendar and setting the payroll check dates according 
to the CBA.  A calendar and schedule has been created and will be provided to the school 
Admin Support staff. 

         

Penny sent the year-end purchasing request to notify all the schools of the action steps they 
need to complete before April 29, 2022 in order to prepare for the closing of the FY 22 
financial system.  This process is key to the efficient and accurate closing of the fiscal year, 
so we are very grateful to the Admin Support Team for their efforts in this task. 

         

Thank you to the entire Fiscal Services Team and the School Admin Support Team for all 
their hard work! 

6



WASHINGTON CENTRAL UNIFIED UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
FUND BALANCE REPORT (ALL FUNDS)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

GENERAL OPERATING FUND (1)

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE AS OF JULY 1, 2021  $         3,333,587 
Previously reserved for Technology Equipment  $          (357,928)

Previously reserved for Fiscal Software & Related Costs  $          (309,000)

TOTAL BEGINNING FUND BALANCE - AVAILABLE FOR OPERATIONS  $         2,666,659 

PROJECTED NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE IN FY 2021-22  $            (32,272)

PROJECTED ENDING FUND BALANCE - JUNE 30, 2022  $         2,634,387 

RESERVE ITEMS FOR FY 2022 - 23 BUDGET
Offset Early Retirement Final Year Expense  $          (145,019)

Offset EMES Classroom Teacher (1.0 FTE)  $            (91,699)

Offset Equity Scholar in Residence  $            (88,750)

TOTAL RESERVE ITEMS FOR FY 2022 - 23 BUDGET  $          (325,468)

TOTAL UNASSIGNED / UNALLOCATED FUND BALANCE  $         2,308,919 

FUND BALANCE TARGET (2% OF CURRENT YEAR BUDGET)  $          (699,699)

AMOUNT AVAILABLE BEYOND THE 2% TARGET  $         1,609,220 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - GRANTS (2)
BEGINNING FUND BALANCE AS OF JULY 1, 2021 -$                        
TOTAL REVENUE CHANGES YTD 2,203,347$         
TOTAL EXPENDITURE CHANGES YTD (2,203,347)$        
PROJECTED ENDING FUND BALANCE - JUNE 30, 2022 -$                        

PERMANENT FUND (5)
BEGINNING FUND BALANCE AS OF JULY 1, 2021 5,773$                
TOTAL REVENUE CHANGES YTD 128$                   
TOTAL EXPENDITURE CHANGES YTD -$                        
PROJECTED ENDING FUND BALANCE - JUNE 30, 2022 5,901$                

ENTERPRISE FUND (6) - FOOD SERVICES
BEGINNING FUND BALANCE AS OF JULY 1, 2021 126,496$            
TOTAL REVENUE CHANGES YTD 632,638$            
TOTAL EXPENDITURE CHANGES YTD (598,348)$           
PROJECTED ENDING FUND BALANCE - JUNE 30, 2022 160,786$            

ENTERPRISE FUND (6) - COMMUNITY CONNECTIONS
BEGINNING FUND BALANCE AS OF JULY 1, 2021 80,834$              
TOTAL REVENUE CHANGES YTD 362,458$            
TOTAL EXPENDITURE CHANGES YTD (295,838)$           
PROJECTED ENDING FUND BALANCE - JUNE 30, 2022 147,454$            

ENTERPRISE FUND (6) - DENTAL PROGRAM
BEGINNING FUND BALANCE AS OF JULY 1, 2021 107,213$            
TOTAL REVENUE CHANGES YTD 176,653$            
TOTAL EXPENDITURE CHANGES YTD (211,032)$           
PROJECTED ENDING FUND BALANCE - JUNE 30, 2022 72,834$              

ENTERPRISE FUND (6) - HRA / MSA / DC
BEGINNING FUND BALANCE AS OF JULY 1, 2021 645,262$            
TOTAL REVENUE CHANGES YTD 743,958$            
TOTAL EXPENDITURE CHANGES YTD (641,720)$           
PROJECTED ENDING FUND BALANCE - JUNE 30, 2022 747,501$            

TRUST FUND (8)
BEGINNING FUND BALANCE AS OF JULY 1, 2021 82,276$              
TOTAL REVENUE CHANGES YTD 3,241$                
TOTAL EXPENDITURE CHANGES YTD (1,695)$               
PROJECTED ENDING FUND BALANCE - JUNE 30, 2022 83,822$              

AGENCY FUND (9)
BEGINNING FUND BALANCE AS OF JULY 1, 2021 150,467$            
TOTAL REVENUE CHANGES YTD -$                        
TOTAL EXPENDITURE CHANGES YTD -$                        
PROJECTED ENDING FUND BALANCE - JUNE 30, 2022 150,467$            

7



8



9



Washington Central Unified Union School District 
 

WCUUSD exists to nurture and inspire in all students the passion, creativity and power to contribute to 
their local and global communities. 

 
 

1130 Gallison Hill Road 
Montpelier, VT  05602  Jennifer Miller-Arsenault 
Phone (802) 229-0553 Interim Superintendent           
Fax (802) 229-2761          

          

 

TO:   WCUUSD Finance Committee & School Board 
FROM:  Jennifer Miller-Arsenault, Interim Superintendent 
                Susanne D. Gann, Business Administrator 
RE:     Federal and State Grant Authorization 
DATE:   April 7, 2022 
 

On an annual basis, it is customary for the School Board to authorize the Superintendent to 
accept all Federal and State grants and to administer and act as the representative of the 
School District.   

Recommended Board Action: The board authorize the Superintendent to accept all 
Federal and State grants and to administer and act as the representative of the School 
District. 

 

 

10



Washington Central Unified Union School District 
 

WCUUSD exists to nurture and inspire in all students the passion, creativity and power to contribute to 
their local and global communities. 

 
 

1130 Gallison Hill Road 
Montpelier, VT  05602  Jennifer Miller-Arsenault 
Phone (802) 229-0553 Interim Superintendent           
Fax (802) 229-2761          

          

 

TO:   WCUUSD Finance Committee 
FROM:  Susanne D. Gann, Business Administrator 
   Chris O’Brien, Director of Facilities 
RE:     Capital Improvement Plan and Five-Year Capital Budget 
DATE:   April 7, 2022 
 

 
Review: At the December 14, 2021 meeting, the Finance Committee proposed two SMART 
Goals related to long-term capital planning. 
 

1. School Board complete five-year long-term capital plan in two phases, immediate 
needs by December 2021 and final plan by May 2022. 

2. Board understanding of the overall long-term five-year capital plan with a system in 
place for monitoring by May 2022. 

 
Long-term capital planning will support the District in caring for our schools and most 
importantly, the building environment recognizing it as an important factor in improving 
educational outcomes.  This commitment to long-term planning will create a proactive 
process and a fiscal management tool to inform and guide annual budgeting, identifying 
funding sources available to the District, and identify the need to borrow in the future.  In 
November, the Board approved the capital improvement projects to be completed in the 
summer of 2022, and continues to be updated on and involved in the planning the planning 
for this work.   
 
Update:  In January, Susanne Gann, Chris O’Brien and Bill Ford began meeting weekly to 
develop a draft Capital Improvement Plan document and Five-year Capital Improvement 
Budget.  Individual meetings with Building Administrators and Maintenance Leads advised 
the list and prioritization of capital improvement projects.  The first draft of the plan was 
reviewed by the Leadership Team at their March 15th meeting.  Based upon the Leadership 
Team feedback, a second draft was developed and again reviewed by the Leadership Team 
in preparation for this Finance Committee Meeting. 
 
Committee Feedback: The hope is that the Capital Improvement Plan and Budget are 
presented in an understandable way that creates transparency and trust with the 

11



Monthly Reflections 

community.  Please review both documents and consider giving feedback using the 
following questions: 

 What do you like about the plan? 
 What would you change about the plan? 
 What needs more clarity? 
 How do we engage the community in this planning process? 

 
Timeline: The development of the WCUUSD of Capital Improvement Plan and Five-Year 
Capital Improvement Budget is an opportunity for the District to engage collaboratively to 
adopt an initial plan that is reviewed annually and continuously improved upon.  The next 
steps in this process are: 
 
April 13 – April 28, 2022 

 Revise the plan based on Finance Committee feedback. 
May 4, 2022  

 Present plan documents to the full Board and public at the Community Forum. 
 Collect Feedback from the Board and Community 

May 18, 2022 
 Revise the plan based on Community Forum feedback. 
 Seek Board adoption of the plan at the business meeting. 
 Seek Board approval of the projects to develop a scope and budget and begin 

planning for FY 24 at the business meeting.   
June 15, 2022 

 Discuss a possible transfer from the District General Fund Balance to the Capital 
Reserve Fund to meet the needs in the Five-year Capital Improvement Budget. 

 Develop a one-page summary for each project using the scope and budget 
completed for each of the projects approved for the summer of 2023. 

 
 

12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30


	4.12.22 Finance Committee Agenda
	3.15.22 Finance Committee Minutes Unapproved
	3.1 Monthly Reflections 04-22
	3.2 FY 22 Fund Balance Projection Report
	4.1 Annual Fiscal Management Questionnaire
	4.2 Federal and State Grant Authorization
	4.3 Capital Improvement Plan
	4.3.1 Capital Improvement Plan and Five-year Capital Budget
	4.3.2 Capital Improvement Plan and Five-year Capital Budget



